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The information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. A registration
statement relating to these securities has become effective under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. This
preliminary prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell these securities
and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED MARCH 13, 2018

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

Prospectus Supplement to Prospectus dated July 29, 2016.

$

The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.

% Senior Notes due

We are offering $        aggregate principal amount of our        % senior notes due                (the �senior notes�). We will
pay interest on the senior notes semi-annually in arrears on             and              of each year, beginning on                ,
2018.

The senior notes may be redeemed at our option, at any time in whole or from time to time in part, as described in this
prospectus supplement under the caption �Description of the Senior Notes � Optional Redemption.�

The senior notes will be our unsecured senior obligations and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

Investing in the senior notes involves substantial risks. You should carefully consider the risks described under the
�Risk Factors� section of this prospectus supplement beginning on page S-5 and similar sections in our filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission incorporated by reference herein before buying the senior notes
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offered hereby.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other securities commission or other regulatory body
has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Per Senior
Note Total

Public offering price(1) % $
Underwriting discounts % $
Proceeds, before expenses, to us % $

(1) Plus accrued interest, if any, from                , 2018, if settlement occurs after that date.

The underwriters expect to deliver the senior notes only in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depository
Trust Company (�DTC�) for the accounts of its participants, including Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the
Euroclear System, and Clearstream Banking, S.A., on or about                 , 2018.

Joint Book-Running Managers

BofA Merrill Lynch Citigroup

        J.P. Morgan US Bancorp

Prospectus Supplement dated                , 2018.
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We are responsible for the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement,
the accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus with respect to this offering filed by us with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. We have not authorized anyone to give you any other
information, and we take no responsibility for any other information that others may give you. You should
assume that the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the
accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus with respect to this offering filed by us with the SEC
is only accurate as of the respective dates of such documents. Our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy,
the senior notes only in jurisdictions where such offers and sales are permitted.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this
offering of the senior notes and also adds to and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus and
the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The
second part, the accompanying prospectus, gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this
offering of the senior notes.

If the description of this offering of the senior notes in the accompanying prospectus is different from the description
in this prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information contained in this prospectus supplement.

You should read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference
into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the additional information described under
�Where You Can Find More Information� and �Information Incorporated by Reference� in this prospectus supplement
before deciding whether to invest in the senior notes offered by this prospectus supplement.

Unless we have indicated otherwise, or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus supplement and
the accompanying prospectus to �The Hartford,� �we,� �us� and �our� or similar terms are to The Hartford Financial Services
Group, Inc. and not to any of its subsidiaries, and references in this prospectus supplement to �the Company� are to The
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively.

You should not consider any information in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any free
writing prospectus filed with respect to this offering by us with the SEC to be investment, legal or tax advice. You
should consult your own counsel, accountants and other advisers for legal, tax, business, financial and related advice
regarding the purchase of the senior notes offered by this prospectus supplement.

Currency amounts in this prospectus supplement are stated in U.S. dollars.

S-ii
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus supplement is part of our registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-212778) that we filed with
the SEC. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about us.
The rules of the SEC allow us to omit from this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus some of the
information included in the registration statement. This information may be read and copied at the Public Reference
Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the operation of these public reference facilities. The SEC maintains an Internet site,
http://www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers
that are subject to the SEC�s reporting requirements.

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act. We fulfill our obligations with respect to such requirements by filing periodic reports and other
information with the SEC. These reports and other information are available as provided above and may also be
inspected at the offices of The New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The rules of the SEC allow us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus supplement. The
information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus supplement, and information that
we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. This prospectus supplement
incorporates by reference the documents listed below:

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 (the �2017 Form 10-K�);

� our Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 6, 2017 (other than information in the Definitive Proxy
Statement that is not specifically incorporated by reference in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2016); and

� all documents filed by us pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 and 15(d) of the Exchange Act, on or after the
date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of this offering (other than information in the
documents that is deemed not to be filed and that is not specifically incorporated by reference into this
prospectus supplement).

Any statement made in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or in a document incorporated by
reference in this prospectus supplement will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus
supplement to the extent that a statement contained in any other subsequently filed document that is also incorporated
by reference in this prospectus supplement modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or
superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus
supplement.

You can obtain any of the filings incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement through us or from the SEC
through the SEC�s Internet site or at the address listed above. We will provide without charge to each person, including
any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this prospectus supplement is delivered, upon written or oral request of such
person, a copy of any or all of the documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference
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in this prospectus supplement. You should direct requests for those documents to The Hartford Financial Services
Group, Inc., One Hartford Plaza, Hartford, Connecticut 06155, Attention: Investor Relations (telephone:
(860) 547-8691).

S-iii

Edgar Filing: HARTFORD FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC/DE - Form 424B5

Table of Contents 6



Table of Contents

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained herein or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by words such as �anticipates,�
�intends,� �plans,� �seeks,� �believes,� �estimates,� �expects,� �projects� and similar references to future periods.

Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions regarding economic, competitive,
legislative and other developments. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to
inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. They have been made based
upon management�s expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effect upon us. Future
developments may not be in line with management�s expectations or have unanticipated effects. Actual results could
differ materially from expectations, depending on the evolution of various factors, including, but not limited to, those
set forth in this prospectus supplement, those set forth in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors of our 2017 Form 10-K and
such other risk factors or similar information as included from time to time in our other filings with the SEC. These
important risks and uncertainties include:

� Risks Relating to Economic, Political and Global Market Conditions:

� challenges related to the Company�s current operating environment, including global political,
economic and market conditions, and the effect of financial market disruptions, economic downturns
or other potentially adverse macroeconomic developments on the demand for our products and returns
in our investment portfolios;

� financial risk related to the continued reinvestment of our investment portfolios;

� market risks associated with our business, including changes in credit spreads, equity prices, interest
rates, inflation rate, market volatility and foreign exchange rates;

� the impact on our investment portfolio if our investment portfolio is concentrated in any particular
segment of the economy;

� Insurance Industry and Product-Related Risks:

� the possibility of unfavorable loss development, including with respect to long-tailed exposures;

� the possibility of a pandemic, earthquake, or other natural or man-made disaster that may adversely
affect our businesses;
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� weather and other natural physical events, including the severity and frequency of storms, hail, winter
storms, hurricanes and tropical storms, as well as climate change and its potential impact on weather
patterns;

� the possible occurrence of terrorist attacks and the Company�s inability to contain its exposure as a
result of, among other factors, the inability to exclude coverage for terrorist attacks from workers�
compensation policies and limitations on reinsurance coverage from the federal government under
applicable laws;

� the Company�s ability to effectively price its property and casualty policies, including its ability to
obtain regulatory consents to pricing actions or to non-renewal or withdrawal of certain product lines;

� actions by competitors that may be larger or have greater financial resources than we do;

� technological changes, such as usage-based methods of determining premiums, advancements in
automotive safety features, the development of autonomous vehicles, and platforms that facilitate ride
sharing, which may alter demand for the Company�s products, impact the frequency or severity of
losses, and/or impact the way the Company markets, distributes and underwrites its products;

S-iv
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� the Company�s ability to market, distribute and provide insurance products and investment advisory
services through current and future distribution channels and advisory firms;

� the uncertain effects of emerging claim and coverage issues;

� Financial Strength, Credit and Counterparty Risks:

� risks to our business, financial position, prospects and results associated with negative rating actions or
downgrades in the Company�s financial strength and credit ratings or negative rating actions or
downgrades relating to our investments;

� the impact on our statutory capital of various factors, including many that are outside the Company�s
control, which can in turn affect our credit and financial strength ratings, cost of capital, regulatory
compliance and other aspects of our business and results;

� losses due to nonperformance or defaults by others, including sourcing partners, derivative
counterparties and other third parties;

� the potential for losses due to our reinsurers� unwillingness or inability to meet their obligations under
reinsurance contracts and the availability, pricing and adequacy of reinsurance to protect the Company
against losses;

� regulatory limitations on the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to declare and pay
dividends;

� Risks Relating to Estimates, Assumptions and Valuations:

� risk associated with the use of analytical models in making decisions in key areas such as
underwriting, capital management, hedging, reserving, and catastrophe risk management;

� the potential for differing interpretations of the methodologies, estimations and assumptions that
underlie the Company�s fair value estimates for its investments and the evaluation of
other-than-temporary impairments on available-for-sale securities;

� the significant uncertainties that limit our ability to estimate the ultimate reserves necessary for
asbestos and environmental claims;
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� Strategic and Operational Risks:

� the Company�s ability to maintain the availability of its systems and safeguard the security of its data in
the event of a disaster, cyber or other information security incident or other unanticipated event;

� the risks, challenges and uncertainties associated with capital management plans, expense reduction
initiatives and other actions, which may include acquisitions, divestitures or restructurings;

� the potential for difficulties arising from outsourcing and similar third-party relationships;

� the Company�s ability to protect its intellectual property and defend against claims of infringement;

� Regulatory and Legal Risks:

� the cost and other potential effects of increased regulatory and legislative developments, including
those that could adversely impact the demand for the Company�s products, operating costs and required
capital levels;

� unfavorable judicial or legislative developments;

� the impact of changes in federal or state tax laws;

S-v
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� regulatory requirements that could delay, deter or prevent a takeover attempt that shareholders might
consider in their best interests;

� the impact of potential changes in accounting principles and related financial reporting requirements;

� Risks Related to the Company�s Life and Annuity Business in Discontinued Operations

� the risks related to the Company�s ability to close its previously announced sale of its life and annuity
run-off book of business, which is subject to several closing conditions, including many that are
outside of the Company�s control;

� the risks related to political, economic and global economic conditions, including interest rate, equity
and credit spread risks;

� the impact on our investment portfolio if our investment portfolio is concentrated in any particular
segment of the economy;

� risks related to negative rating actions or downgrades in the financial strength and credit ratings of
Hartford Life Insurance Company or Hartford Life and Annuity Insurance Company or negative rating
actions or downgrades relating to our investments;

� the volatility in our statutory and United States (�U.S.�) Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(�GAAP�) earnings and potential material changes to our results resulting from our risk management
program to emphasize protection of economic value;

� the potential for losses due to our reinsurers� unwillingness or inability to meet their obligations under
reinsurance contracts;

� the potential for differing interpretations of the methodologies, estimations and assumptions that
underlie the fair value estimates for investments and the evaluation of other-than-temporary
impairments on available for sale securities;

� the potential for further acceleration of deferred policy acquisition cost amortization and an increase in
reserves for certain guaranteed benefits in our variable annuities;

� changes in federal or state tax laws that would impact the tax-favored status of life and annuity
contracts; and
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� changes in accounting and financial reporting of the liability for future policy benefits, including how
the life and annuity businesses account for deferred acquisition costs and market risk benefits on
variable annuity contracts and the discounting of life contingent fixed annuities.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, any
document incorporated by reference herein or therein or any free writing prospectus filed by us with the SEC
speaks only as of the date on which it is made. Factors or events that could cause our actual results to differ
may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of them. We undertake no obligation to
publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments
or otherwise.

S-vi
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SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information included elsewhere or
incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Because this is a
summary, it may not contain all of the information that is important to you. Before making an investment decision, you
should read the entire prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by
reference, including the section entitled �Risk Factors� in this prospectus supplement and Part I, Item 1A, of our
2017 Form 10-K.

The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.

The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. is a holding company for a group of subsidiaries that provide property
and casualty insurance, group benefits and mutual funds to individual and business customers in the United States and
continues to administer life insurance products previously sold. The Hartford is headquartered in Connecticut and its
oldest subsidiary, Hartford Fire Insurance Company, dates to 1810.

Our principal executive offices are located at One Hartford Plaza, Hartford, Connecticut 06155, and our telephone
number is (860) 547-5000.

Sale of Our Life and Annuity Run-off Business

On December 3, 2017, Hartford Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (�Seller�) and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of The Hartford, entered into a Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement with Hopmeadow Acquisition, Inc. (�Buyer�),
Hopmeadow Holdings, LP (�Buyer Parent�) and Hopmeadow Holdings GP LLC (�Buyer Parent GP�) to sell all of the
issued and outstanding equity of Hartford Life, Inc. (�HLI�), which, together with HLI�s run-off life and annuity
insurance subsidiaries, will comprise the Talcott Resolution business (�Talcott Resolution�) at closing. Buyer, Buyer
Parent and Buyer Parent GP are funded by a group of investors (the �Investor Group�) led by Cornell Capital LLC,
Atlas Merchant Capital LLC, TRB Advisors LP, Global Atlantic Financial Group, Pine Brook and J. Safra Group.
Seller will be a member of the Investor Group.

Total consideration for the sale is $2.05 billion, comprised of $1.443 billion in cash to be paid by Buyer at closing;
$300 million in pre-closing cash dividends paid from Talcott Resolution to Seller; $143 million of HLI long-term debt
that will be included as part of the sale; and equity interests representing 9.7% of the outstanding equity interests of
each of Buyer Parent and Buyer Parent GP valued at $164 million.

The estimated GAAP net loss on sale and the results of operations of Talcott Resolution of $3.1 billion are reported as
discontinued operations beginning in the fourth quarter of 2017, and continuing through closing. As discontinued
operations, the results of operations of Talcott Resolution are excluded from income from continuing operations and
from core earnings, a non-GAAP financial measure, for all periods presented in the Company�s financial statements.
The estimated loss on discontinued operations is subject to a final determination of the tax basis of the operations sold.
The transaction is anticipated to close by June 30, 2018, subject to regulatory approval and other closing conditions.
See Note 20 � Business Dispositions and Discontinued Operations of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of
our 2017 Form 10-K.

Recent Developments

The Company expects to enter into an amendment to its existing credit agreement with certain financial institutions
(the �Credit Agreement�) on or about the end of March 2018 (the �Proposed Amendment�).
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The Proposed Amendment would reset the level of the Company�s minimum consolidated net worth financial covenant
to $9 billion, from its current $13.5 billion, and will make certain other updates to the Credit Agreement. The
Proposed Amendment will also provide for the automatic replacement of the Credit Agreement with an amended and
restated credit agreement upon and subject to the occurrence of the closing of the Talcott sale, which is expected to
(i) decrease the aggregate principal amount of the facility from $1 billion to $750 million, (ii) change the maturity date
to the date that is five years from the date of the Proposed Amendment, (iii) modify the liens covenant and certain
other covenants therein and (iv) make other amendments and modifications to be agreed.

S-2
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The Offering

Issuer The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.

Securities Offered $             aggregate principal amount of     % senior notes due             .

Denominations The senior notes will be issued in minimum denominations of $2,000
principal amount and multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.

Maturity Date                 .

Interest Interest on the senior notes will accrue from the issue date until maturity
at a rate of     % per year.

We will pay interest on the senior notes semi-annually in arrears on
                 and                  of each year, beginning on                 , 2018.
Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
twelve 30-day months.

Further Issuances There is no limit on the aggregate principal amount of senior notes that
we may issue. Subject to certain tax limitations, we reserve the right,
from time to time and without the consent of any holders, to re-open the
series of which the senior notes are a part and issue additional senior
notes on terms identical in all respects to the outstanding senior notes
(except the date of issuance, the date interest begins to accrue and, in
certain circumstances, the first interest payment date), so that such
additional senior notes shall be consolidated with, form a single series
with and increase the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding
senior notes.

Use of Proceeds We estimate that the net proceeds from this offering of our senior notes
will be approximately $             , after deducting underwriting discounts
and the estimated expenses of the offering that we will pay.

We intend to use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering for the
full repayment at maturity of our $320 million principal amount of our
6.300% senior notes due 2018 (�Senior Notes due 2018�) on March 15,
2018. The balance of the proceeds will be used for general corporate
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purposes.

Risk Factors See �Risk Factors� beginning on page S-5 of this prospectus supplement
and similar sections in our filings with the SEC incorporated by reference
herein before buying the senior notes offered hereby.

Indenture We will issue the senior notes under an indenture between us and The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.

Ranking The senior notes will be our unsecured senior indebtedness and will rank
equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness
from time to time outstanding.

S-3
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Optional Redemption Prior to                , 20    (    months prior to maturity), we may redeem the
senior notes at our option, at any time in whole, or from time to time in
part, at a redemption price equal to the greater of:

�100% of the principal amount of the senior notes being redeemed;
and

�the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments
of principal and interest on the senior notes to be redeemed
(assuming the senior notes matured on                ) (exclusive of
interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted to the date of
redemption of the senior notes on a semi-annual basis (assuming a
360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the applicable
Treasury Rate (as defined in this prospectus supplement)
plus                basis points.

In each case, we will pay the accrued and unpaid interest on the principal
amount being redeemed to the date of redemption. See �Description of the
senior notes � Optional Redemption.�

On or after                , 20    , we may redeem the senior notes at our
option, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the senior notes to be redeemed plus
accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption date, as
described under �Description of the senior notes � Optional Redemption.�

No Listing The senior notes constitute a new issue of securities with no established
trading market. We do not intend to have the senior notes listed on a
national securities exchange or to arrange for quotation on any automated
dealer quotation systems. We cannot assure you that an active
after-market for the senior notes will develop or be sustained, that
holders of the senior notes will be able to sell their senior notes or that
holders of the senior notes will be able to sell their senior notes at
favorable prices.

Form The senior notes will be represented by one or more global notes that will
be deposited with and registered in the name of The Depository Trust
Company, or DTC, or its nominee for the accounts of its participants,
including Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., or Euroclear, as operator of the
Euroclear System, and Clearstream Banking, S.A., or Clearstream.
Transfers of ownership interests in the global notes will be effected only
through entries made on the books of DTC participants acting on behalf
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of beneficial owners.

Trustee and Principal Paying Agent The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.

Governing Law The State of New York.

S-4
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the senior notes offered hereby is subject to certain risks. The trading price of the senior notes could
decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Before you decide to invest in the
senior notes you should consider the risk factors below relating to our business and this offering, as well as other
trends, risks and uncertainties identified in our 2017 Form 10-K and in the other documents incorporated by
reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The following risk factors are not
necessarily listed in order of importance.

Risks Related to the Senior Notes

The secondary market for the senior notes may be illiquid.

The senior notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. We do not intend to apply to list the
senior notes on any securities exchange or to arrange for quotation of the senior notes on any automated dealer
quotation system. We cannot give any assurance as to the liquidity of any trading market for the senior notes. The lack
of a trading market could adversely affect your ability to sell your senior notes and the price at which you may be able
to sell your senior notes.

Changes in our credit ratings, the debt markets or other factors could adversely affect the market price of the
senior notes.

The market price for the senior notes depends on many factors, including, among other things:

� our credit ratings with major credit rating agencies, including with respect to the senior notes;

� the prevailing interest rates being paid by other companies similar to us;

� our operating results, financial condition, financial performance and future prospects; and

� economic, financial, geopolitical, regulatory and judicial events that affect us, the industries and markets in
which we are doing business and the financial markets generally, including continuing uncertainty in the
global economy, the impact of governmental stimulus or austerity initiatives, and sovereign credit concerns
in Europe and other key economies.

We may redeem the senior notes prior to their maturity date and you may not be able to reinvest the proceeds in a
comparable security.

We may, at our option, redeem, in whole or in part, the senior notes at any time and from time to time at the
applicable redemption price described herein under �Description of the Senior Notes�Optional Redemption.� In the event
we choose to redeem your senior notes, you may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable
security at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the senior notes.

The closing of the sale of our life and annuity run-off business is subject to risks and uncertainties.
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On December 4, 2017, the Company announced the sale of its life and annuity runoff business to Buyer whereby a
subsidiary of the Company will sell all of the issued and outstanding equity of HLI to Buyer. The sale is expected to
close by June 30, 2018.

The closing of the sale is subject to regulatory approval and other closing conditions, many of which are beyond the
Company�s control. The Company cannot predict with certainty whether all of the required closing conditions will be
satisfied or waived or if other uncertainties may arise. In addition, regulators could impose additional requirements or
obligations as conditions for their approvals, which may be burdensome. As a result,

S-5
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the sale may not be completed or may be delayed and the Company may lose some or all of the intended benefits of
the sale.

The closing of this offering is not conditioned on the closing of the sale. Accordingly, if the sale does not close,
investors in this offering will own debt in the Company without giving effect to the intended sale and will have no
rights with regard thereto.

S-6
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds from this offering of our senior notes will be approximately $             , after
deducting underwriting discounts and the estimated expenses of the offering that we will pay. We intend to use a
portion of the net proceeds from this offering for the full repayment at maturity of our $320 million principal amount
of our Senior Notes due 2018 on March 15, 2018. The balance of the proceeds will be used for general corporate
purposes.

S-7
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization (on a carrying value basis) as of December 31, 2017:

� on an actual basis;

� on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the refinancing of debt; and

� on an as further adjusted pro forma basis to give effect to the sale of Talcott Resolution.
You should read the data set forth in the table below in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements,
including the related notes, and �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� from our 2017 Form 10-K, incorporated by reference herein.

As of December 31, 2017

Actual

As adjusted for
the refinancing

of debt(1)

As further
adjusted on a
pro forma basis
for the sale of

Talcott
Resolution

(Unaudited, in millions)
Total Short-Term Debt(1) $ 320 $ $
Long-Term Debt:
Notes offered hereby

Other long-term debt 4,678

Total Long-Term Debt(1) 4,678

Total Debt $ 4,998 $ $
Stockholders� Equity
Common stock (par value $0.01 per share; 1,500,000,000
shares authorized; 384,923,222 shares issued) (Actual, As
adjusted and As further adjusted) 4 4 4
Additional paid-in capital 4,379 4,379 4,379
Retained earnings 9,642 9,642 9,642
Treasury stock, at cost (28,088 shares) (1,194) (1,194) (1,194) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (�AOCI�), net of
tax(2) 663 663 (354) 

Total Stockholders� Equity $ 13,494 $ 13,494 $ 12,477
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Total Capitalization $ 18,492 $ $

(1) We intend to use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering for the full repayment at maturity of our
$320 million principal amount of our Senior Notes due 2018 on March 15, 2018. The balance of the proceeds will
be used for general corporate purposes.

(2) At the closing of the proposed sale of the Talcott Resolution business, which is expected to occur by June 30,
2018, AOCI will be reduced by $1,017 based on the Talcott Resolution AOCI balance as of December 31, 2017.
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth, for each of the periods indicated, our ratio of earnings to fixed charges.

For purposes of computing the ratio of consolidated earnings to fixed charges, �earnings� consist of income from
continuing operations before federal income taxes less undistributed earnings from limited partnerships and other
alternative investments plus fixed charges. �Fixed charges� consist of interest expense, capitalized interest, amortization
or debt issuance costs and an imputed interest component for rental expense.

For the years ended December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(In millions)
EARNINGS:
Income from continuing operations, before federal income
taxes 723 447 1,478 1,232 987
Less: Undistributed earnings from limited partnerships and
other alternative investments �  �  �  17 41
Add: Total fixed charges 337 351 375 396 421

Total earnings 1,060 798 1,853 1,611 1,367

FIXED CHARGES:
Interest expense $ 316 $ 327 $ 346 $ 365 $ 384
Interest factor attributable to rentals and other(1) 21 24 29 31 37

Total fixed charges 337 351 375 396 421

RATIOS:
Total earnings to total fixed charges 3.1 2.3 4.9 4.1 3.2
Deficiency of total earnings to total fixed charges(2) $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  

(1) Interest factor attributable to rentals and other includes 1/3 of total rent expense as disclosed in the notes to the
Company�s consolidated financial statements, capitalized interest and amortization of debt issuance costs.

(2) Represents additional earnings that would be necessary to result in a one-to-one ratio.

S-9

Edgar Filing: HARTFORD FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC/DE - Form 424B5

Table of Contents 26



Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF THE SENIOR NOTES

The following description is a summary of the terms of the senior notes being offered (which we refer to in this
prospectus supplement as the �senior notes�). The descriptions in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying
prospectus contain descriptions of certain terms of the senior notes and the indenture but do not purport to be
complete, and reference is hereby made to the indenture which has been filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement of which this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are a part, and to the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. This summary supplements the description of the debt securities in the
accompanying prospectus and, to the extent it is inconsistent, replaces the description in the accompanying
prospectus.

General

The senior notes will constitute a separate series of securities and will be issued under an indenture dated as of
April 11, 2007, between us and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, as supplemented by
the first supplemental indenture dated as of August 9, 2013, referred to as the �Indenture.� The senior notes will mature
on             .

The accompanying prospectus describes additional provisions of the senior notes and of the Indenture. There is no
limit on the aggregate principal amount of senior notes that we may issue. Subject to certain tax limitations, we
reserve the right, from time to time and without the consent of the holders, to re-open the series of which the senior
notes are a part and issue additional senior notes on terms identical in all respects to the outstanding senior notes
(except the date of issuance, the date interest begins to accrue and, in certain circumstances, the first interest payment
date), so that such additional senior notes shall be consolidated with, form a single series with and increase the
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding senior notes.

The senior notes will only be issued in fully registered book-entry form in minimum denominations of $2,000 and
multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.

The Indenture does not require the maintenance of any financial ratios or specified levels of net worth or liquidity.
The Indenture will not contain provisions that would afford holders of the senior notes protection in the event of a
sudden and dramatic decline in our credit quality resulting from any highly leveraged transaction, reorganization,
restructuring, merger or similar transaction involving us that may adversely affect such holders.

Interest

The senior notes will bear interest at a rate of    % per annum. Interest on the senior notes will accrue from                 ,
2018. We will pay interest on the senior notes semi-annually in arrears on                 and                 of each year,
beginning                 , 2018, to the record holders at the close of business on the preceding                  or                  , as
applicable (whether or not a business day). Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
twelve 30-day months.

Optional Redemption

Prior to                 , 20         (        months prior to maturity), we may redeem the senior notes at our option, at any time
in whole, or from time to time in part, in multiples of $1,000, at a redemption price equal to the greater of:
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� 100% of the principal amount of the senior notes being redeemed; and

� the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the senior
notes to be redeemed (assuming the senior notes matured on                ) (exclusive of interest accrued to the
date of redemption) discounted to the date of redemption of the senior notes on a semi-annual basis
(assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the applicable Treasury Rate (as defined in
this prospectus supplement) plus                basis points.
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In each case, we will pay accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed to the date of
redemption.

On or after                 , 20     we may redeem the senior notes at our option, in whole or in part, at any time at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the senior notes to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid
interest to, but excluding, the redemption date.

�Comparable Treasury Issue� means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker
as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term (�Remaining Life�) of the senior notes to be redeemed that
would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues
of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of such senior notes.

�Comparable Treasury Price� means, as determined by us, with respect to any redemption date, (1) the average of the
Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotations, or (2) if the Independent Investment Banker obtains fewer than four such Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all such quotations.

�Independent Investment Banker� means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers that we appoint to act as the
Independent Investment Banker from time to time.

�Reference Treasury Dealer� means (1) each of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and one other primary U.S. Government securities dealer in New York City
selected by U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc. and their respective successors, unless any of them ceases to be a primary
U.S. Government securities dealer in New York City (a �Primary Treasury Dealer�), in which case we shall substitute
another Primary Treasury Dealer and (2) any other Primary Treasury Dealers selected by us.

�Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations� means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption
date, the average, as determined by the Independent Investment Banker, of the bid and asked prices for the
Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the
Independent Investment Banker by such Reference Treasury Dealer at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third
business day preceding such redemption date.

�Treasury Rate� means, with respect to any redemption date, the rate per year equal to: (1) the yield, under the heading
which represents the average for the immediately preceding week, appearing in the most recently published statistical
release designated �H.15(519)� or any successor publication which is published weekly by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System and which establishes yields on actively traded United States Treasury securities adjusted
to constant maturity under the caption �Treasury Constant Maturities,� for the maturity corresponding to the
Comparable Treasury Issue; provided that, if no maturity is within three months before or after the Remaining Life of
the senior notes to be redeemed, yields for the two published maturities most closely corresponding to the Comparable
Treasury Issue shall be determined and the Treasury Rate shall be interpolated or extrapolated from those yields on a
straight line basis, rounding to the nearest month; or (2) if such release (or any successor release) is not published
during the week preceding the calculation date or does not contain such yields, the rate per year equal to the
semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated using a price for the
Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury
Price for such redemption date. The Treasury Rate shall be calculated by us on the third business day preceding the
redemption date.
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Notice of redemption will be mailed at least 30 but not more than 60 days before the redemption date to each holder of
record of the senior notes to be redeemed at its registered address. The notice of redemption for the senior notes will
state, among other things, the amount of senior notes to be redeemed (any unredeemed portion of a senior note to be in
a minimum denomination of $2,000), the redemption date, the manner in which the redemption price will be
calculated and the place or places that payment will be made upon presentation and surrender of senior notes to be
redeemed. Unless we default in the payment of the redemption price, interest will cease to accrue on any senior notes
that have been called for redemption at the redemption date.

S-11

Edgar Filing: HARTFORD FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC/DE - Form 424B5

Table of Contents 30



Table of Contents

Defeasance

The provisions of the Indenture relating to defeasance, which are described under the caption �Description of the Debt
Securities � Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance� in the accompanying prospectus, will apply to the senior notes.

Ranking

The senior notes will be our unsecured senior indebtedness and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

We are a holding company that derives all our income from our subsidiaries. Accordingly, our ability to service our
debt, including our obligations under the senior notes, and other obligations are primarily dependent on the earnings of
our respective subsidiaries and the payment of those earnings to us, in the form of dividends, loans or advances and
through repayment of loans or advances from us. In addition, any payment of dividends, loans or advances by those
subsidiaries could be subject to statutory or contractual restrictions. Our subsidiaries have no obligation to pay any
amounts due on the senior notes. See �Risk Factors � Our ability to declare and pay dividends is subject to limitations.�

Book-Entry; Delivery and Form

The senior notes will be represented by one or more global notes that will be deposited with and registered in the
name of The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, or its nominee for the accounts of its participants, including
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., or Euroclear, as operator of the Euroclear System, and Clearstream Banking, S.A., or
Clearstream. We will not issue certificated senior notes, except in the limited circumstances described below.
Transfers of ownership interests in the global notes will be effected only through entries made on the books of DTC
participants acting on behalf of beneficial owners. You, as the beneficial owner of senior notes, will not receive
certificates representing ownership interests in the global notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry system
for the senior notes is discontinued. You will not receive written confirmation from DTC of your purchase. The direct
or indirect participants through whom you purchased the senior notes should send you written confirmations providing
details of your transactions, as well as periodic statements of your holdings. The direct and indirect participants are
responsible for keeping accurate account of the holdings of their customers like you. The laws of some states require
that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form. Such limits and such
laws may impair the ability to own, transfer or pledge beneficial interests in the global notes.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner and holder of the global notes, DTC or its nominee, as the case
may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the senior notes represented by the global notes for all purposes
under the Indenture relating to the senior notes. Except as provided below, you, as the beneficial owner of interests in
the global notes, will not be entitled to have senior notes registered in your name, will not receive or be entitled to
receive physical delivery of senior notes in definitive form and will not be considered the owner or holder thereof
under the Indenture. Accordingly, you, as the beneficial owner, must rely on the procedures of DTC and, if you are
not a DTC participant, on the procedures of the DTC participants through which you own your interest, to exercise
any rights of a holder under the Indenture.

Neither we, the trustee, nor any other agent of ours or agent of the trustee will have any responsibility or liability for
any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in global notes or
for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to the beneficial ownership interests. DTC�s practice is
to credit the accounts of DTC�s direct participants with payment in amounts proportionate to their respective holdings
in principal amount of beneficial interest in a security as shown on the records of DTC, unless DTC has reason to
believe that it will not receive payment on the payment date. The underwriters will initially designate the accounts to
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receiving distributions on their senior notes because distributions will initially be made to DTC and they must be
transferred through the chain of intermediaries to the beneficial owner�s account. Payments by DTC participants to you
will be the responsibility of the DTC participant and not of DTC, the trustee or us. Accordingly, we and any paying
agent will have no responsibility or liability for: any aspect of DTC�s records relating to, or payments made on account
of, beneficial ownership interests in senior notes represented by a global securities certificate; any other aspect of the
relationship between DTC and its participants or the relationship between those participants and the owners of
beneficial interests in a global securities certificate held through those participants; or the maintenance, supervision or
review of any of DTC�s records relating to those beneficial ownership interests.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect
participants, and by direct participants and indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

We have been informed that, under DTC�s existing practices, if we request any action of holders of senior notes, or an
owner of a beneficial interest in a global security such as you desires to take any action which a holder of senior notes
is entitled to take under the Indenture, DTC would authorize the direct participants holding the relevant beneficial
interests to take such action, and those direct participants and any indirect participants would authorize beneficial
owners owning through those direct and indirect participants to take such action or would otherwise act upon the
instructions of beneficial owners owning through them.

Clearstream and Euroclear have provided us with the following information and neither we nor the underwriters take
any responsibility for its accuracy:

Clearstream

Clearstream is incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg as a professional depositary. Clearstream holds securities
for its participating organizations and facilitates the clearance and settlement of securities transactions between
Clearstream participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of Clearstream participants, thereby
eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates. Clearstream provides to Clearstream participants, among
other things, services for safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and
securities lending and borrowing. Clearstream interfaces with domestic securities markets in several countries. As a
professional depositary, Clearstream is subject to regulation by the Luxembourg Commission for the Supervision of
the Financial Sector (Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier). Clearstream participants include
underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other
organizations and may include the underwriters. Clearstream�s U.S. participants are limited to securities brokers and
dealers and banks. Indirect access to Clearstream is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust
companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Clearstream participant either directly or
indirectly.

Distributions with respect to senior notes held beneficially through Clearstream will be credited to cash accounts of
Clearstream participants in accordance with its rules and procedures, to the extent received by the U.S. depositary for
Clearstream.

Euroclear

Euroclear was created in 1968 to hold securities for participants of Euroclear and to clear and settle transactions
between Euroclear participants through simultaneous electronic book-entry delivery against payment, thereby
eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates and any risk from lack of simultaneous transfers of
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Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. under contract with Euroclear plc, a U.K. corporation. All operations are conducted by the
Euroclear operator, and all Euroclear securities clearance accounts and Euroclear cash accounts are accounts with the
Euroclear operator, not Euroclear plc. Euroclear plc establishes policy for Euroclear on behalf of Euroclear
participants. Euroclear participants include banks, including central banks, securities brokers and dealers and other
professional financial intermediaries and may include the underwriters. Indirect access to Euroclear is also available to
other firms that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear participant, either directly or
indirectly.

The Euroclear operator is a Belgian bank. As such it is regulated by the Belgian Banking and Finance Commission.

Securities clearance accounts and cash accounts with the Euroclear operator are governed by the Terms and
Conditions Governing Use of Euroclear and the related Operating Procedures of the Euroclear System, and applicable
Belgian law (collectively, the �Terms and Conditions�). The Terms and Conditions govern transfers of securities and
cash within Euroclear, withdrawals of securities and cash from Euroclear, and receipts of payments with respect to
securities in Euroclear. All securities in Euroclear are held on a fungible basis without attribution of specific
certificates to specific clearance accounts. The Euroclear operator acts under the Terms and Conditions only on behalf
of Euroclear participants and has no record of or relationship with persons holding through Euroclear participants.

Distributions with respect to senior notes held beneficially through Euroclear will be credited to the cash accounts of
Euroclear participants in accordance with the Terms and Conditions, to the extent received by the U.S. depositary for
Euroclear.

Euroclear has further advised us that investors who acquire, hold and transfer interests in the senior notes by
book-entry through accounts with the Euroclear operator or any other securities intermediary are subject to the laws
and contractual provisions governing their relationship with their intermediary, as well as the laws and contractual
provisions governing the relationship between such an intermediary and each other intermediary, if any, standing
between themselves and the global securities certificates.

Global Clearance and Settlement Procedures

Initial settlement for the senior notes will be made in immediately available funds. Secondary market trading between
DTC participants will occur in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in immediately
available funds using DTC�s Same Day Funds Settlement System. Secondary market trading between Clearstream
participants and/or Euroclear participants will occur in the ordinary way in accordance with the applicable rules and
operating procedures of Clearstream and Euroclear and will be settled using the procedures applicable to conventional
eurobonds in immediately available funds.

Cross market transfers between persons holding directly or indirectly through DTC, on the one hand, and directly or
indirectly through Clearstream participants or Euroclear participants, on the other, will be effected through DTC in
accordance with DTC rules on behalf of the relevant European international clearing system by its U.S. depositary;
however, such cross market transactions will require delivery of instructions to the relevant European international
clearing system by the counterparty in such system in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its
established deadlines (European time). The relevant European international clearing system will, if the transaction
meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its U.S. depositary to take action to effect final settlement on
its behalf by delivering or receiving senior notes through DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with
normal procedures for same day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Clearstream participants and Euroclear
participants may not deliver instructions directly to their respective U.S. depositaries.
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and dated the business day following the DTC settlement date. Such credits or any transactions in such senior notes
settled during such processing will be reported to the relevant Euroclear participants or Clearstream participants on
such following business day. Cash received in Clearstream or Euroclear as a result of sales of senior notes by or
through a Clearstream participant or a Euroclear participant to a DTC participant will be received with value on the
DTC settlement date but will be available in the relevant Clearstream or Euroclear cash account only as of the
business day following settlement in DTC.

Although DTC, Clearstream and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of
senior notes among participants of DTC, Clearstream and Euroclear, they are under no obligation to perform or
continue to perform such procedures and such procedures may be modified or discontinued at any time. Neither we
nor the paying agent will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream or their
respective direct or indirect participants of their obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.
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U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to a holder of a
senior note. This summary is based on provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�),
applicable Treasury regulations, laws, rulings, administrative pronouncements and decisions now in effect, all of
which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary deals only with beneficial owners of
senior notes that will hold senior notes as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes and that purchased the
senior notes in this offering at the �issue price,� which we assume will be the price indicated on the cover of this
prospectus, and does not address particular tax considerations that may be applicable to investors that are subject to
special tax rules, such as banks, tax-exempt entities, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, dealers in
securities or currencies, traders in securities electing to mark to market, persons that will hold senior notes as a
position in a �straddle� or conversion transaction, or as part of a �synthetic security� or other integrated financial
transaction, partnerships and entities or other arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax
purposes or the partners therein, persons subject to the alternative minimum tax, U.S. expatriates or persons that have
a �functional currency� other than the U.S. dollar.

This summary addresses only U.S. federal income tax consequences, and does not purport to be a complete analysis of
all potential tax considerations. It does not address consequences arising under state, local, foreign tax laws or the
Medicare tax on net investment income. Investors should consult their own tax advisors in determining the tax
consequences to them of holding senior notes under such tax laws, as well as the application to their particular
situation of the U.S. federal income tax considerations discussed below.

As used herein, a �U.S. holder� is a beneficial owner of a senior note that is a citizen or resident of the United States or a
U.S. domestic corporation or that otherwise will be subject to U.S. federal income taxation on a net income basis in
respect of the senior note. A �non-U.S. holder� is a beneficial owner of a senior note that is an individual, corporation,
foreign estate, or foreign trust that is not a U.S. holder.

Under recently enacted legislation, U.S. holders that use an accrual method of accounting for tax purposes generally
will be required to include certain amounts in income no later than the time such amounts are reflected on certain
financial statements. The application of this rule thus may require the accrual of income earlier than would be the case
under the general tax rules described below, although the precise application of this rule is unclear at this time. This
rule generally will be effective for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017 or, for senior notes issued with
original issue discount, for tax years beginning after December 31, 2018. U.S. holders that use an accrual method of
accounting should consult with their tax advisors regarding the potential applicability of this legislation to their
particular situation.

U.S. Holders

Payments of Interest. Payments of stated interest will be taxable to a U.S. holder as ordinary interest income at the
time it accrues or is actually or constructively received, in accordance with the holder�s method of accounting for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. It is expected, and this discussion assumes, that the senior notes will not be issued with
more than a de minimis amount of original issue discount (�OID�). In general, however, if the senior notes are issued
with more than a de minimis amount of OID, a U.S. holder will be required to include OID in gross income, as
ordinary income, under a �constant-yield method� before the receipt of cash attributable to such income, regardless of
the U.S. holder�s regular method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Sale, Exchange and Retirement of Senior Notes. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement of a senior note, a U.S. holder
generally will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale, exchange or
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will generally equal the cost of the senior note to such holder. Gain or loss recognized by a U.S. holder generally will
be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder has held the senior note for more than one year at the time of
disposition. Long-term capital gains recognized by an individual holder generally are subject to tax at a lower rate
than short-term capital gains or ordinary income. The deduction of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Non-U.S. Holders

Payments of Interest. Subject to the discussions below under �� FATCA� and �Information Reporting and Backup
Withholding,� payments of interest on the senior notes to a non-U.S. holder generally will be exempt from withholding
of U.S. federal income tax under the portfolio interest exemption provided that (i) the non-U.S. holder properly
certifies as to its foreign status by providing a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or appropriate
substitute form) to the applicable withholding agent; (ii) the non-U.S. holder does not actually or constructively own
10% or more of the total combined voting power of our stock entitled to vote; and (iii) the non-U.S. holder is not a
controlled foreign corporation that is related to us actually or constructively through stock ownership. If any of the
first three requirements described in the preceding sentence cannot be satisfied, payments of interest on the senior
notes will generally be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 30%, or the rate specified by an applicable treaty.

Sale, Exchange and Retirement of Senior Notes. Subject to the discussions below under �� FATCA� and �Information
Reporting and Backup Withholding,� a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain
recognized on a sale, exchange or retirement of senior notes, provided, in the case of a non-U.S. holder that is an
individual, the non-U.S. holder is not present in the United States for 183 days or more in the year of the sale and
certain other conditions are met.

FATCA. Under the U.S. tax rules known as the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (�FATCA�), a holder of senior
notes will generally be subject to 30% U.S. withholding tax on interest payments on the senior notes (and, starting on
January 1, 2019, principal payments on the senior notes and gross proceeds from the sale or other taxable disposition
of the senior notes) if the holder is not FATCA compliant, or holds its senior notes through a foreign financial
institution that is not FATCA compliant. In order to be treated as FATCA compliant, a holder must provide us or an
applicable financial institution certain documentation (usually an IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E) containing
information about its identity, its FATCA status, and, if required, its direct and indirect U.S. owners. For a foreign
financial institution to be FATCA compliant, it generally must enter into an agreement with the U.S. government to
report, on an annual basis, certain information regarding accounts with or interests in the institution held by certain
United States persons and by certain non-U.S. entities that are wholly or partially owned by United States persons, or
must satisfy similar requirements under an intergovernmental agreement between the United States and another
country (an �IGA�). These requirements may be modified by the adoption or implementation of a particular IGA or by
future U.S. Treasury Regulations. If any taxes are required to be deducted or withheld from any payments in respect of
the senior notes as a result of a beneficial owner or intermediary�s failure to comply with the foregoing rules, no
additional amounts will be paid on the senior notes as a result of the deduction or withholding of such tax.

Documentation that holders provide in order to be treated as FATCA compliant may be reported to the IRS and other
tax authorities, including information about a holder�s identity, its FATCA status, and, if applicable, its direct and
indirect U.S. owners. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors about how information reporting and
the possible imposition of withholding tax under FATCA may apply to their investment in the senior notes.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Information returns will be filed with the IRS in connection with payments on the senior notes made to, and the
proceeds of dispositions of senior notes effected by, certain U.S. holders. In addition, certain U.S. holders may be
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identification numbers to the person from whom they receive payments. Non-U.S. holders may be required to comply
with applicable certification procedures to establish that they are not U.S. holders in order to avoid the application of
such information reporting requirements and backup withholding. The amount of any backup withholding from a
payment to a U.S. or non-U.S. holder will be allowed as a credit against the holder�s U.S. federal income tax liability
and may entitle the holder to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.
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CERTAIN ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of certain considerations associated with the acquisition, holding and disposition of the
senior notes by employee benefit plans that are subject to Title I of the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, as amended (�ERISA�), and plans, individual retirement accounts and other arrangements that are subject
to Section 4975 of the Code or any other federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other laws or regulations that are similar to
such provisions of the Code or ERISA (collectively, �Similar Laws�), and entities whose underlying assets are
considered to include �plan assets� of such plans, accounts and arrangements (each, a �Plan�).

General Fiduciary Matters

ERISA and the Code impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries of a Plan subject to Title I of ERISA or
Section 4975 of the Code (an �ERISA Plan�) and prohibit certain transactions involving the assets of an ERISA Plan
and its fiduciaries or other interested parties. Under ERISA and the Code, any person who exercises any discretionary
authority or control over the administration of such an ERISA Plan or the management or disposition of the assets of
such an ERISA Plan, or who renders investment advice for a fee or other compensation to such an ERISA Plan, is
generally considered to be a fiduciary of the ERISA Plan.

In considering an investment in the senior notes by a Plan, a fiduciary should determine whether the investment is in
accordance with the documents and instruments governing the Plan and the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code
or any Similar Law relating to a fiduciary�s duties to the Plan and investment of assets of the Plan including, without
limitation, the prudence, diversification, delegation of authority and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA, the
Code and any other applicable Similar Laws.

Prohibited Transaction Issues

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit ERISA Plans from engaging in specified transactions
involving plan assets with persons or entities who are �parties in interest,� within the meaning of ERISA, or �disqualified
persons,� within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code, unless an exemption is available. A party in interest or
disqualified person who engages in a non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to excise taxes and other
penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Code. In addition, the fiduciary of an ERISA Plan that engages in such a
non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Code.

The acquisition, holding and disposition of the senior notes by an ERISA Plan with respect to which the Company or
our affiliates are considered a party in interest or a disqualified person may constitute or result in a direct or indirect
prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code, unless an applicable statutory or
administrative exemption is available . In this regard, the U.S. Department of Labor has issued prohibited transaction
class exemptions, or �PTCEs,� that may apply to the acquisition, holding and disposition of the senior notes. These class
exemptions include, without limitation, PTCE 84-14 with respect to transactions determined by qualified professional
asset managers, PTCE 90-1 with respect to insurance company pooled separate accounts, PTCE 91-38 with respect to
bank collective investment funds, PTCE 95-60 with respect to life insurance company general accounts and PTCE
96-23 with respect to transactions determined by in-house asset managers. In addition, Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA
and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code provide relief from the prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and
Section 4975 of the Code for certain transactions, provided that neither the issuer of the securities nor any of its
affiliates (directly or indirectly) have or exercise any discretionary authority or control or render any investment
advice with respect to the assets of any ERISA Plan involved in the transaction and provided further that the ERISA
Plan pays no more, nor receives no less, than adequate consideration in connection with the transaction. Each of the
above-noted exemptions contains conditions and limitations on its application. Fiduciaries of ERISA Plans
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ensure that exemptive relief is available under it. There can be no assurance that any such exemption will be
applicable or all the conditions satisfied.

Because of the foregoing, the senior notes should not be acquired, held or disposed by any person investing �plan assets�
of any Plan, unless such acquisition, holding and disposition will not constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited
transaction under ERISA and the Code or a violation of any applicable Similar Laws.

Representation

Each purchaser and subsequent transferee (and any fiduciary directing such acquisition) of a senior note will be
deemed to have represented and warranted to us on each day including the date of its acquisition of the senior note
through and including the date of disposition of such senior note that either (i) the purchaser or transferee is not, and is
not acting on behalf of or with the assets of, a Plan or (ii) the acquisition, holding and disposition of the senior notes
by such purchaser or transferee will not constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under Section 406
of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or a violation under any applicable Similar Laws.

The foregoing discussion is general in nature and is not intended to be all inclusive. Due to the complexity of these
rules and the penalties that may be imposed upon persons involved in non-exempt prohibited transactions, it is
particularly important that fiduciaries, or other persons considering acquiring, holding or disposing of the senior notes
on behalf of, or with the assets of, any Plan, consult with their counsel regarding the potential applicability of ERISA,
Section 4975 of the Code and any Similar Laws to such investment and whether an exemption would be available.
Purchasers of the senior notes have exclusive responsibility for ensuring that their purchase, holding and disposition of
the senior notes do not violate the fiduciary or prohibited transaction rules of ERISA, the Code or any Similar Laws.
The sale of any senior notes to a Plan is in no respect a representation by the Company that such an investment meets
all relevant legal requirements with respect to investments by any such Plan generally or any particular Plan, or that
such investment is appropriate for such Plans generally or any particular Plan. In this regard, neither this discussion
nor anything provided in this prospectus supplement is or is intended to be investment advice directed at any potential
Plan purchasers or at Plan purchasers generally and such purchasers of the senior notes should consult and rely on
their own counsel and advisers as to whether an investment in the senior notes is suitable.
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UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement dated              , 2018, the underwriters named
below, for whom Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated are acting as
representatives (the �representatives�), have severally and not jointly agreed to purchase from us, and we have agreed to
sell, the respective aggregate principal amount of senior notes listed opposite their names below, at the public offering
price less the underwriting discount set forth below:

Underwriters
Principal Amount
of senior notes

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. $
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
                 Incorporated
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc.

Total $

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several underwriters to purchase the senior notes
offered hereby are subject to certain conditions and that the underwriters will purchase all of the senior notes offered
by this prospectus supplement if any of these senior notes are purchased. The offering of the senior notes by the
underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters� right to reject any order in whole or in
part.

We have been advised by the representatives that the underwriters propose to offer the senior notes directly to the
public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, and the underwriters may
sell the senior notes to certain dealers at the public offering price less a concession not in excess of    % of the
aggregate principal amount of the senior notes. The underwriters may allow, and such dealers may reallow, a
concession not in excess of    % of the aggregate principal amount of the senior notes to certain other dealers. After the
initial public offering of the senior notes to the public, the representatives may change the public offering price and
other selling terms.

We have agreed, during the period beginning from the date of this prospectus supplement and continuing to and
including the settlement date for the offering of the senior notes, not to offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose
of, except with the prior consent of the representatives, any securities of ours which are substantially similar to the
senior notes.

We will pay the underwriting discounts and commissions of    % of the public offering price per senior note, for a total
of $             .

We estimate that our share of the total expenses of this offering, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions,
will be approximately $1,100,000.
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We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in
respect of any of such liabilities.

The senior notes is a new issue of securities with no established trading market. The senior notes will not be listed on
any securities exchange or on any automated dealer quotation system. The representatives have advised us that the
underwriters may make a market in the senior notes after completion of the offering, but will not be obligated to do so
and may discontinue any market-making activities at any time without notice. No assurance
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can be given as to the liquidity of the trading market for the senior notes or that an active public market for the senior
notes will develop. If an active public trading market for the senior notes does not develop, the market price and
liquidity of the senior notes may be adversely affected.

In connection with the offering of the senior notes, certain of the underwriters may engage in transactions that
stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the senior notes. Specifically, the underwriters may overallot in
connection with the offering, creating a short position. In addition, the underwriters may bid for, and purchase, the
senior notes in the open market to cover syndicate short positions or to stabilize the price of the senior notes. The
underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a
portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased senior notes sold by
or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering transactions. Any of these activities may
stabilize or maintain the market price of the senior notes above independent market levels, but no representation is
made hereby of the magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on the market price of the
senior notes. The underwriters will not be required to engage in these activities, and may engage in these activities,
and may end any of these activities, at any time without notice.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities,
including securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management,
principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective
affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and
investment and commercial banking services for us, for which they received or may receive customary fees and
expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or
hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and
financial instruments (which may include bank loans and/or credit default swaps) for their own account and for the
accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such
investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. In addition,
affiliates of some of the underwriters are lenders, and in some cases agents for the lenders under our credit facility.
Certain of the underwriters or their affiliates that have a lending relationship with us routinely hedge, and certain other
of those underwriters or their affiliates may hedge their credit exposure to us consistent with their customary risk
management policies. A typical such hedging strategy would include these underwriters or their affiliates hedging
such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the purchase of credit default swaps or the creation
of short positions in our securities, including potentially the senior notes offered hereby. Any such credit default
swaps or short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the senior notes. The underwriters and their
affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect
of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short
positions in such securities and instruments.

Selling Restrictions

No action has been or will be taken by us that would permit a public offering of the senior notes, or possession or
distribution of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus or any other offering or publicity material
relating to the senior notes, in any country or jurisdiction outside the United States where, or in any circumstances in
which, action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, the senior notes may not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any other offering or publicity material
relating to the senior notes may not be distributed or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction outside the
United States except under circumstances that will result in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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Notice to Prospective Investors in Canada

The senior notes may be sold only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are
accredited investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection 73.3(1) of the
Securities Act (Ontario), and are permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration
Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the senior notes must be made in
accordance with an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements of applicable
securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for
rescission or damages if this prospectus supplement (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation,
provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed
by the securities legislation of the purchaser�s province or territory. The purchaser should refer to any applicable
provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser�s province or territory for particulars of these rights or consult
with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the underwriters are not
required to comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in
connection with this offering.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

The senior notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or
otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area. For these purposes,

(a) a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of:

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, �MiFID II�);

(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC, where that customer would not qualify as a
professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive; and

(b) the expression �offer� includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on
the terms of the offer and the senior notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or
subscribe the senior notes.

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus have been prepared on the basis that any offer of senior
notes in any Member State of the EEA will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive from the
requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of senior notes. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying
prospectus are not a prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive.
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This EEA selling restriction is in addition to any other selling restrictions set out in this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus. See also �Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom� below.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

(i) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the senior notes which are the
subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus supplement in circumstances in which Section 21(1)
of the FSMA does not apply to the Company; and
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(ii) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done
by it in relation to the senior notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

See also �Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area� above.

This communication is only being distributed to and is only directed at (i) persons who are outside the
United Kingdom; or (ii) investment professionals falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the �Order�); or (iii) high net worth companies, and other persons to whom
it may lawfully be communicated, falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being
referred to as �relevant persons�). The senior notes are only available to, and any invitation, offer or agreement to
subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire such senior notes will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. Any person
who is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.�

Notice to Prospective Investors in Switzerland

This prospectus supplement does not constitute an issue prospectus pursuant to Article 652a or Article 1156 of the
Swiss Code of Obligations and the senior notes will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange. Therefore, this
prospectus supplement may not comply with the disclosure standards of the listing rules (including any additional
listing rules or prospectus schemes) of the SIX Swiss Exchange. Accordingly, the senior notes may not be offered to
the public in or from Switzerland, but only to a selected and limited circle of investors who do not subscribe to the
senior notes with a view to distribution. Any such investors will be individually approached by the underwriters from
time to time.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

(a) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong Kong any senior notes by means of any document other
than (i) to �professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) (the �SFO�) and any rules made thereunder, or (ii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document
being a �prospectus� within the meaning of the Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.
32, Laws of Hong Kong) or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance; and

(b) it has not issued or had in its possession for the purposes of issue, and will not issue or have in its possession for
the purpose of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, any advertisement, invitation or document relating to any
senior notes, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong
Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to senior notes
which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to �professional investors�
within the meaning of the SFO and any rules made thereunder.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Japan

The senior notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan
(Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended, the �Financial Instruments and Exchange Law�). Each underwriter has represented
and agreed that it has not offered or sold, and will not offer or sell any senior notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
to, or for the benefit of, any Japanese person or to others, for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to,
or for the benefit of, any Japanese person, except in each case pursuant to an exemption from the registration
requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any other
applicable laws and regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan. For purposes of this paragraph, �Japanese person�
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Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus have not been, and will not be, registered as a
prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore under the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore
(the �SFA�). Accordingly, each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that (a) it has not circulated or
distributed and will not circulate or distribute this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and any
other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the senior
notes, (b) has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any senior notes, and (c) has not made and will not make
any senior notes to be the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, in each
of the cases of (a) to (c), to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the
SFA, (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in
accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance
with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the senior notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is:

(a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole business of
which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom
is an accredited investor; or

(b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each
beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

securities (as defined in Section 239(1) of the SFA) of that corporation or the beneficiaries� rights and interest
(howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has
acquired the senior notes pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person as defined in Section 275(2) of the
SFA, or to any person arising from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of the SFA;

(2) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer;

(3) where the transfer is by operation of law;

(4) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA; or

(5) as specified in Regulation 32 of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures)
Regulations 2005 of Singapore.
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VALIDITY OF THE SENIOR NOTES

The validity of the senior notes offered by this prospectus supplement will be passed upon for us by Cleary Gottlieb
Steen & Hamilton LLP, New York, New York, and certain legal matters will be passed upon for us by David C.
Robinson, Esq., our Executive Vice President and General Counsel, or his designee. As of March 8, 2018,
Mr. Robinson beneficially owned 17,609 shares of our common stock, 38,174 shares of our common stock obtainable
through the exercise of vested options, 32,656 restricted stock units, and unvested options to acquire an additional
78,445 shares of our common stock. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the underwriters by Davis Polk &
Wardwell LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The financial statements, and the related financial statement schedules, incorporated in this prospectus supplement and
the accompanying prospectus by reference from the 2017 Form 10-K, and the effectiveness of the Company�s internal
control over financial reporting, have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements and
financial statement schedules have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
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PROSPECTUS

The Hartford Financial

Services Group, Inc.

Debt Securities

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Depositary Shares

Warrants

Stock Purchase Contracts

Stock Purchase Units

By this prospectus, we may offer from time to time, or selling securityholders may sell from time to time, the
securities described in this prospectus separately or together in any combination.

Specific terms of any securities to be offered will be provided in a supplement to this prospectus. You should read this
prospectus and any supplement carefully before you invest. A supplement may also add to, update, supplement or
clarify information contained in this prospectus.

Unless stated otherwise in a prospectus supplement, none of these securities will be listed on any securities exchange.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �HIG.�

We may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more agents, underwriters, dealers or other third parties or
directly to one or more purchasers on a continuous or delayed basis. In addition, selling securityholders may sell their
securities from time to time on terms described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Investing in the offered securities involves risks. You should consider the risk factors described in any
applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents we incorporate by reference.
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Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is July 29, 2016.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the
SEC, utilizing a �shelf� registration process. Under this shelf process, we are registering an unspecified amount of each
class of the securities described in this prospectus, and we may sell any combination of the securities described in this
prospectus in one or more offerings. In addition, we may use this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement
in a remarketing or other resale transaction involving the securities after their initial sale. This prospectus provides
you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a
prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. Selling securityholders
may also sell securities on terms described in the applicable prospectus supplement. The prospectus supplement may
also add to, update, supplement or clarify information contained in this prospectus. The rules of the SEC allow us to
incorporate by reference information into this prospectus and any prospectus supplement. Any information
incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus and any relevant prospectus supplement, and
information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. See
�Incorporation by Reference.� You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with
additional information described under the heading �Where You Can Find More Information,� and any free writing
prospectus with respect to an offering filed by us with the SEC.

We are responsible for the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We and any selling
securityholders have not authorized anyone to give you any other information, and we take no responsibility for, and
can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. We and any selling
securityholders are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not
permitted. You should not assume that the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or
any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date of the document containing the information.

Unless otherwise indicated, or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to the �Company,� �we,� �us�
and �our� or similar terms are to The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. and not to any of its subsidiaries and
references to the �The Hartford� are to The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND CERTAIN RISK FACTORS

Certain of the statements contained herein or incorporated by reference in this prospectus are forward-looking
statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements can be identified by words such as �anticipates,� �intends,� �plans,� �seeks,� �believes,� �estimates,�
�expects,� �projects,� and similar references to future periods.

Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions regarding economic, competitive,
legislative and other developments. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to
inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. They have been made based
upon management�s expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effect upon us. Future
developments may not be in line with management�s expectations or may have unanticipated effects. Actual results
could differ materially from expectations, depending on the evolution of various factors, including, but not limited to,
those set forth in this prospectus and those set forth in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2016 and
June 30, 2016 and other filings made with the SEC. These important risks and uncertainties include:
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� Risks Related to Economic, Market and Political Conditions:

� challenges related to The Hartford�s current operating environment, including global political,
economic and market conditions, and the effect of financial market disruptions, economic
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IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR STRATEGIC ALLIANCES, WE MAY NOT REALIZE THE EXPECTED
BENEFITS FROM SUCH ALLIANCES AND WE MAY EXPERIENCE INCREASED COMPETITION OR DELAYS IN PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

We have several strategic alliances with large and complex organizations and other companies with which we work to offer complementary
products and services and have established a joint venture to market services associated with our Cisco Unified Computing System products.
These arrangements are generally limited to specific projects, the goal of which is generally to facilitate product compatibility and adoption of
industry standards. There can be no assurance we will realize the expected benefits from these strategic alliances or from the joint venture. If
successful, these relationships may be mutually beneficial and result in industry growth. However, alliances carry an element of risk because, in
most cases, we must compete in some business areas with a company with which we have a strategic alliance and, at the same time, cooperate
with that company in other business areas. Also, if these companies fail to perform or if these relationships fail to materialize as expected, we
could suffer delays in product development or other operational difficulties. Joint ventures can be difficult to manage, given the potentially
different interests of joint venture partners.

30

Edgar Filing: HARTFORD FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC/DE - Form 424B5

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

OUR STOCK PRICE MAY BE VOLATILE

Historically, our common stock has experienced substantial price volatility, particularly as a result of variations between our actual financial
results and the published expectations of analysts and as a result of announcements by our competitors and us. Furthermore, speculation in the
press or investment community about our strategic position, financial condition, results of operations, business, security of our products, or
significant transactions can cause changes in our stock price. In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market price of many technology companies, in particular, and that have often been unrelated to the operating
performance of these companies. These factors, as well as general economic and political conditions and the announcement of proposed and
completed acquisitions or other significant transactions, or any difficulties associated with such transactions, by us or our current or potential
competitors, may materially adversely affect the market price of our common stock in the future. Additionally, volatility, lack of positive
performance in our stock price or changes to our overall compensation program, including our stock incentive program, may adversely affect our
ability to retain key employees, virtually all of whom are compensated, in part, based on the performance of our stock price.

THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT OUR OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION WILL NOT BE
ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY OUR INCURRENCE OF SENIOR UNSECURED DEBT

In February 2006, we issued senior unsecured notes in an aggregate principal amount of $6.5 billion, of which $500 million matured in February
2009, $3.0 billion will mature in February 2011, and the balance will mature in February 2016. In addition, in February 2009 we issued an
aggregate of $4.0 billion of senior unsecured notes that mature at specific dates in 2019 and 2039. A portion of the proceeds of the notes issued
in February 2009 was used to repay in full the notes that matured that month. Also, in November 2009, we issued senior unsecured notes in an
aggregate principal amount of $5.0 billion, of which $500 million will mature in November 2014, $2.5 billion will mature in January 2020, and
the balance will mature in January 2040. The outstanding notes bear fixed-rate interest payable semiannually. The fair value of the long-term
debt is subject to market interest rate volatility. The instruments governing the notes contain certain covenants applicable to us and our
subsidiaries that may adversely affect our ability to incur certain liens or engage in certain types of sale and leaseback transactions. In addition,
we will be required to have available in the United States sufficient cash to repay these notes on maturity. There can be no assurance that our
incurrence of this debt will be a better means of providing liquidity to us than would our use of our existing cash resources, including cash
currently held offshore. Further, we cannot be assured that our maintenance of this indebtedness will not adversely affect our operating results or
financial condition. In addition, changes by any rating agency to our credit rating can negatively impact the value and liquidity of both our debt
and equity securities.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located at an owned site in San Jose, California. In addition to this site, we own certain sites in the United States, which
include facilities in the surrounding areas of San Jose, California; Boston, Massachusetts; Richardson, Texas; Lawrenceville, Georgia; and
Research Triangle Park, North Carolina. We also own land for expansion in some of these locations. In addition, we lease office space in several
U.S. locations.

Outside the United States our operations are conducted primarily in leased sites, such as our Globalisation Centre East campus in Bangalore,
India. Other significant sites are located in Australia, Belgium, China, Germany, India, Israel, Italy, Japan, Norway, and the United Kingdom.

We own and lease certain Scientific-Atlanta manufacturing facilities with a principal manufacturing facility, which we own, located in Juarez,
Mexico. We believe that our existing facilities, including both owned and leased, are in good condition and suitable for the conduct of our
business.

For additional information regarding obligations under operating leases, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2010
Annual Report to Shareholders. Note 11 is incorporated by reference herein. For additional information regarding properties by operating
segment, see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders. Note 15 is incorporated by reference
herein.
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

Brazilian authorities have investigated our Brazilian subsidiary and certain of our current and former employees, as well as a Brazilian importer
of our products, and its affiliates and employees, relating to alleged evasion of import taxes and alleged improper transactions involving the
subsidiary and the importer. Brazilian authorities have assessed claims against our Brazilian subsidiary based on a theory of joint liability with
the Brazilian importer for import taxes and related penalties. The claims are for calendar years 2003 through 2007 and aggregate to
approximately $190 million for the alleged evasion of import taxes, $85 million for interest, and approximately $1.6 billion for various penalties,
all determined using an exchange rate as of July 31, 2010. We have completed a thorough review of the matter and believe the asserted tax
claims against us are without merit, and we intend to defend the claims vigorously. While we believe there is no legal basis for our alleged
liability, due to the complexities and uncertainty surrounding the judicial process in Brazil and the nature of the claims asserting joint liability
with the importer, we are unable to determine the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome against us and are unable to reasonably estimate a range
of loss, if any. We do not expect a final judicial determination for several years.

We have investigated the alleged improper transactions referred to above. We communicated with United States authorities to provide
information and report on our findings and the United States authorities have investigated such allegations.

We and other defendants were subject to patent claims asserted by Network-1 Security Solutions, Inc. on February 7, 2008 in the Federal
District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. Network-1 alleged that various of our products implement a method for remotely powering
equipment that infringes United States Patent No. 6,218,930. Network-1 sought monetary damages. The trial on these claims began on July 12,
2010. During trial, we and Network-1 settled our dispute on terms that are not material to us, and the lawsuit was dismissed with prejudice on
August 6, 2010.

In addition, we are subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, including intellectual property
litigation. While the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable, we do not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will
have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. For additional information regarding
intellectual property litigation, see �Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors�We may be found to infringe on intellectual property rights of others� herein.

ITEM 4. Reserved
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) The market price and related Cisco shareholder information required by this item are incorporated by reference to the section entitled �Stock
Market Information� on page 77 of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.

(b) Not Applicable.

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Period

Total
Number of
Shares

Purchased (1)

Average
Price Paid
per Share (1)

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly

Announced
Plans or

Programs (2)

Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares

That May Yet
Be 

Purchased
Under the
Plans or
Programs

(2)
May 2, 2010 to May 29, 2010 36 $ 24.43 36 $ 8,453
May 30, 2010 to June 26, 2010 26 $ 22.99 24 $ 7,903
June 27, 2010 to July 31, 2010 39 $ 22.52 39 $ 7,018

Total 101 $ 23.33 99

(1) Includes approximately 1.9 million shares repurchased to satisfy tax withholding obligations that arose on the vesting of shares of
restricted stock and restricted stock units.

(2) On September 13, 2001, we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized a stock repurchase program. As of July 31, 2010, our
Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $72 billion of common stock under this program. During fiscal 2010, we
repurchased and retired 325 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $24.02 per share for an aggregate purchase price of
$7.8 billion. As of July 31, 2010, we had repurchased and retired 3.1 billion shares of our common stock at an average price of $20.78 per
share for an aggregate purchase price of $65.0 billion since inception of the stock repurchase program, and the remaining authorized
amount for stock repurchases under this program was $7.0 billion with no termination date.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to page 7 of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.

ITEM 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to pages 8 to 35 of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to pages 36 to 38 of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to pages 39 to 76 and the section entitled �Supplementary Financial Data
(Unaudited)� on page 77 of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None.
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ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on our management�s evaluation (with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer), as of the end of
the period covered by this report, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the �Exchange Act�)) are
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management�s report on our internal control over financial reporting and the report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our
internal control over financial reporting are incorporated by reference to the portion of page 5 under the caption �Management�s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting� and to page 6, respectively, of our 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders.

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during our fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by this item relating to our directors and nominees is included under the captions �Proposal No. 1: Election of
Directors�General,� ��Business Experience and Qualifications of Nominees,� and ��Board Committees and Meetings�Nomination and Governance
Committee� in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item regarding our Audit Committee is included under the caption �Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors�Board
Committees and Meetings� in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this item relating to our executive officers is included under the
caption �Executive Officers of the Registrant� in Part I of this report.

The information required by this item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 is included under the caption
�Ownership of Securities�Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance� in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer and all members of our finance department, including the
principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. This code of ethics, which consists of the �Special Ethics Obligations for Employees
with Financial Reporting Responsibilities� section of our Code of Business Conduct that applies to employees generally, is posted on our website.
The Internet address for our website is www.cisco.com, and the code of ethics may be found from our main webpage by clicking first on �About
Cisco� and then on �Corporate Governance� under �Investor Relations,� next on �Code of Business Conduct� under �Corporate Governance,� and finally
on �Special Ethics Obligations for Employees with Financial Reporting Responsibilities.�

We intend to satisfy any disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics by posting such information on our website, on the webpage found by clicking through to �Code of Business Conduct� as specified
above.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
The information appearing under the headings �Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors�Director Compensation� and �Executive Compensation and
Related Information� in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is included under the caption
�Ownership of Securities,� and the information required by this item relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans
is included under the caption �Equity Compensation Plan Information,� in each case in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item relating to review, approval or ratification of transactions with related persons is included under the
caption �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,� and the information required by this item relating to director independence is included
under the caption �Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors�Independent Directors,� in each case in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this item is included under the captions �Proposal No. 3: Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm�Principal Accountant Fees and Services� and �Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm� in our Proxy Statement related to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)    1. Financial Statements
The Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on page 37 is incorporated herein by reference as the list of financial
statements required as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule
The Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on page 37 is incorporated herein by reference as the list of financial
statement schedules required as part of this report.

3. Exhibits
The exhibit list in the Index to Exhibits is incorporated herein by reference as the list of exhibits required as part of this report.
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Item 15(a)

Page

Form 10-K

2010 Annual
Report to

Shareholders
Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 5
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 6
Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 31, 2010 and July 25, 2009 39
Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2010 40
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2010 41
Consolidated Statements of Equity for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2010 42
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 43-76
Supplementary Financial Data (Unaudited) and Stock Market Information Fiscal 2010 and 2009 by
Quarter 77
Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 38
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule 39
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SCHEDULE II

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(in millions)

Allowances For
Lease

Receivables
Loan

Receivables
Accounts
Receivable

Year ended July 26, 2008:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 104 $ 243 $ 166
Provision 37 13 34
Write-offs and other (5) (128) (23)

Balance at end of fiscal year $ 136 $ 128 $ 177

Year ended July 25, 2009:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 136 $ 128 $ 177
Provision 80 33 54
Write-offs and other (3) (73) (15)

Balance at end of fiscal year $ 213 $ 88 $ 216

Year ended July 31, 2010:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year $ 213 $ 88 $ 216
Provision 25 43 44
Write-offs and other (31) (58) (25)

Balance at end of fiscal year $ 207 $ 73 $ 235
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cisco Systems, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting referred to in our report
dated September 20, 2010 appearing in the 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders of Cisco Systems, Inc. (which report and consolidated financial
statements are incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K) also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in
Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set
forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, California

September 20, 2010
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report on Form
10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

September 21, 2010 CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.

/s/    JOHN T. CHAMBERS        

John T. Chambers

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John T. Chambers
and Frank A. Calderoni, jointly and severally, his attorney-in-fact, each with the full power of substitution, for such person, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he might do or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or his substitute,
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/S/    JOHN T. CHAMBERS        

John T. Chambers
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

September 21, 2010

/S/    FRANK A. CALDERONI        

Frank A. Calderoni
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

September 21, 2010

/S/    PRAT S. BHATT        

Prat S. Bhatt
Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

September 21, 2010

/S/    CAROL A. BARTZ        

Carol A. Bartz

Lead Independent Director September 21, 2010

/S/    M. MICHELE BURNS        

M. Michele Burns

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    MICHAEL D. CAPELLAS        

Michael D. Capellas

Director September 21, 2010
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Signature Title Date

/S/    LARRY R. CARTER        

Larry R. Carter

Director September 21, 2010

Brian L. Halla

Director

/S/    JOHN L. HENNESSY        

Dr. John L. Hennessy

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    RICHARD M. KOVACEVICH        

Richard M. Kovacevich

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    RODERICK C. MCGEARY        

Roderick C. McGeary

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    MICHAEL K. POWELL        

Michael K. Powell

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    ARUN SARIN        

Arun Sarin

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    STEVEN M. WEST        

Steven M. West

Director September 21, 2010

/S/    JERRY YANG        

Jerry Yang

Director September 21, 2010
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Filed
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit Filing Date

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cisco Systems, Inc., as currently in
effect S-3 333-56004 4.1 2/21/2001

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Cisco Systems, Inc., as currently in
effect 8-K 000-18225 3.1 3/23/2007

4.1 Indenture, dated February 22, 2006, between Cisco Systems, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee 8-K 000-18225 4.1 2/22/2006

4.2 Indenture, dated February 17, 2009, between Cisco Systems, Inc. and the
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee 8-K 000-18225 4.1 2/17/2009

4.3 Indenture, dated November 17, 2009, between Cisco Systems, Inc. and the
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee 8-K 000-18225 4.1 11/17/2009

4.4 Forms of Global Note for the registrant�s 5.25% Senior Notes due 2011 and
5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 8-K 000-18225 4.1 2/22/2006

4.5 Forms of Global Note for the registrant�s 4.95% Senior Notes due 2019 and
5.90% Senior Notes due 2039 8-K 000-18225 4.1 2/17/2009

4.6 Forms of Global Note for the registrant�s 2.90% Senior Notes due 2014,
4.45% Senior Notes due 2020, and 5.50% Senior Notes due 2040 8-K 000-18225 4.1 11/17/2009

10.1* Cisco Systems, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (including related form
agreements) X

10.2* Cisco Systems, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan
(including related form agreements) X

10.3* 1997 Supplemental Stock Incentive Plan (including related form
agreements) 10-K 000-18225 10.2 9/18/2007

10.4* Cisco Systems, Inc. SA Acquisition Long-Term Incentive Plan (amends
and restates the 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan of Scientific-Atlanta)
(including related form agreements) 10-K 000-18225 10.4 9/18/2007

10.5* Cisco Systems, Inc. WebEx Acquisition Long-Term Incentive Plan.
(amends and restates the WebEx Communications, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan) (including related form agreements) 10-K 000-18225 10.5 9/18/2007

10.6* Cisco Systems, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan 8-K 000-18225 10.2 11/12/2009

10.7* Notice of Grant of Stock Option and Stock Option Agreement between
John T. Chambers and Cisco Systems, Inc. 10-K 000-18225 10.6 9/20/2004

10.8* Cisco Systems, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended 10-K 000-18225 10.7 9/18/2007

10.9* Cisco Systems, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan 8-K 000-18225 10.2 11/19/2007

10.10 Amended and Restated International Assignment Agreement dated as of
February 15, 2010 by and between Cisco Systems, Inc. and Wim Elfrink 8-K 000-18225 10.1 2/17/2010

10.11* Form of Executive Officer Indemnification Agreement 10-K 000-18225 10.7 9/20/2004

10.12* Form of Director Indemnification Agreement 10-K 000-18225 10.8 9/20/2004

10.13 Credit Agreement dated as of August 17, 2007, by and among Cisco
Systems, Inc., the Lenders party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent, swing line lender and an L/C issuer 8-K 000-18225 10.1 8/17/2007

10.14 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2009, by and
among Cisco Systems, Inc., the Lenders, and Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent, swing line lender and an L/C issuer 10-K 000-18225 10.14 9/11/2009
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Filed
HerewithForm File No. Exhibit

Filing
Date

10.15 Lender Joinder Agreement dated as of February 12, 2010, by and among
Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank and Cisco Systems, Inc. 10-Q 000-18225 10.2 5/26/2010

13.1 Pages 5 to 78 of the Registrant�s 2010 Annual Report to Shareholders X

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant X

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm X

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on page 40 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K) X

31.1 Rule 13a�14(a)/15d�14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer X

31.2 Rule 13a�14(a)/15d�14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer X

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer X

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Financial Officer X

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document X

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document X

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document X

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document X

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document X

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed herewith, is not a part of a registration statement

or Prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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